
   
OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK             
 

 

COUNCIL MINUTES 
 
 
April 19, 2010  
 
 
The City Council  of  the City of Mesa met  in a Study Session  in  the  lower  level meeting  room of  the 
Council Chambers, 57 East 1st Street, on April 19, 2010 at 4:47 p.m. 
 
 
COUNCIL PRESENT 

 
 
COUNCIL ABSENT 

 
 
OFFICERS PRESENT 

    
Mayor Scott Smith  None  Christopher Brady 
Alex Finter    Debbie Spinner 
Dina Higgins    Linda Crocker 
Kyle Jones    
Dennis Kavanaugh    
Dave Richins    
Scott Somers    

 
 

1.  Review items on the agenda for the April 19, 2010 Regular Council meeting. 
 

All of  the  items on  the agenda were reviewed among Council and staff and  the following was 
noted: 

 
  Conflicts declared: None 
  

Items removed from the consent agenda: 4a 
 
  Items deleted from the consent agenda: 5e, 8b. 8c 

 
Economic Development Project Manager Patrick Murphy displayed a PowerPoint presentation 
(See  Attachment  1)  and  discussed  Item  6m  (Designating  the  City  Council  as  a  Local 
Redevelopment  Authority  to  facilitate  the  disposition  of  the  Former  Air  Force  Research  Lab 
located at 6030 South Kent Street) on the Regular Council Meeting agenda. 
 

2.  Hear a presentation, discuss and provide direction on adjustments to business rules, rates and 
fees for City of Mesa utility customers as proposed by the Water Resources, Energy Resources, 
Solid Waste and Business Services Department: 
 
a.  Terms and Conditions for the Sale of Utilities 
b.  Fees and Charges for Utility Customer 



Study Session 
April 19, 2010 
Page 2 
 
 

c.  Utility Rates 
 

City Manager Christopher Brady stated that this was the first opportunity for the full Council to 
review  the  recommended  utility  rates  and  fees  that  staff  presented  to  the  Audit  &  Finance 
Committee at its April 1, 2010 meeting.   
 
Budget  Director Chuck Odom displayed  a  PowerPoint  presentation  (See  Attachment  2) and 
highlighted a series of assumptions  that staff used  to make their  rate recommendations.  (See 
Page 2 of Attachment 2)  He stated that it was important to note that the current cumulative debt 
service forecast  is $66 million less through FY 2014/15 than was forecasted last spring due to 
savings  on  current  project  costs  and  additional  savings  in  growth  related  projects. Mr. Odom 
also  reviewed  a  graph  illustrating  cumulative  debt  service  as  compared  to  cumulative  rate 
adjustments for Utilities. (See Page 3 of Attachment 2)   
 
Mr.  Odom,  in  addition,  provided  a  brief  analysis  of  the  current  rates  as  compared  to  the 
proposed rate changes (FY 2010/11 through FY 2012/13) for the Electric, Natural Gas, Water, 
Wastewater and Solid Waste Programs. (See Pages 4 through 8 of Attachment 2) 
 
Mr. Brady clarified that pursuant to previous Council direction, staff  is researching the issue of 
possibly matching the City of Mesa’s natural gas residential rate in the Magma area with that of 
Southwest Gas. He noted  that  the current proposal does not  include such an option, but said 
that staff would bring back  the  issue  for  further discussion prior  to  the May 17, 2010 Regular 
Council meeting when the Council would adopt the Utility Rate Notice of Intention.  
 
Mayor  Smith  indicated  that  it  was  important  for  the  City  of  Mesa  to  have  rates  that  are 
comparable to the rates of other utilities and that the approach is fair to the customers. 
 
Mr. Odom commented  that  it was staff’s  recommendation  to adjust  the Wastewater  rate  from 
8.6%  to  4.5%. He  explained  that  this was  due,  in  part,  to  the  fact  that  the Greenfield Water 
Reclamation expansion program has been extended out until FY 2018.  Mr. Odom commented 
that the rate was initially reduced to 6.5%, but explained that during a review of the Model City 
Tax Code, staff determined  that although the City collected sales  tax on Electric, Natural Gas 
and Water utilities, no tax was being collected on Wastewater services.   
 
Mr. Odom noted  that as a result of such analysis, staff recommends a 4.5% Wastewater  rate 
and also  that customers be charged  the sales  tax of 1.75% for such services. He added  that 
Phoenix and Scottsdale have already imposed a similar tax. 
 
Mr. Odom further remarked that regarding the Solid Waste Program, due to a reduction in the 
amount  of  solid  waste  tonnage  being  collected  and  decreased  landfill  charges,  staff 
recommends that the current Solid Waste rate of 2.7% be decreased to 0% for FY 2010/11.  He 
said  that  staff  would  continue  to monitor  the  rates  as  the  economy  improves  and  conditions 
change.   
 
Discussion ensued relative to a future presentation regarding the City of Mesa’s current water 
rate structure; that currently, approximately 80% of water expenses are fixed (i.e. pumps, plants, 
pipes) and 20% of  the expenses are variable; and that staff seeks to align rates with program 
costs to stabilize the Water Program’s revenue stream. 
 



Study Session 
April 19, 2010 
Page 3 
 
 

Mr. Odom reviewed the FY 2010/11 Budget timelines. (See Pages 12 and 13 of Attachment 2)  
 
3.  Hear a presentation, discuss and provide direction on adjustments to fees and charges for the 

following departments: 
 

a.  Transportation 
b.  Falcon Field Airport 
c.  Development and Sustainability  
d.  Business Services 
e.  City Clerk’s Office 

 
Mr. Odom displayed a PowerPoint presentation (See Attachment 3) and reported that the fee 
recommendations  for  the  abovelisted  departments  were  presented  to  the  Audit  &  Finance 
Committee at  its April  1,  2010 meeting. He stated  that  the Committee  recommended  that  the 
items move forward to the full Council for approval.  Mr. Odom explained that most of the items 
are  “housekeeping  issues”  and  said  that  staff  anticipates  less  than  $100,000  in  total  rate 
adjustments Citywide for fees and charges in FY 2010/11.  
 
Mr.  Odom  briefly  summarized  the  various  fee  recommendations.  (See Pages  3  through  6  of 
Attachment 3)  
 
Development and Sustainability Director Christine Zielonka briefly highlighted various fees and 
charges  that have been moved  to Development Services  in order  to reflect  the reorganization 
that has occurred in the past year. (See Pages 11 through 14 of Attachment 3)  
 
Ms.  Zielonka explained  that  the Planning Division  assumed  responsibility  for  all  planning and 
zoning functions  in  the downtown districts and noted  that  the associated fees related to those 
activities have been moved from the Economic Development section to the Planning section of 
the schedule of fees.  
 
Ms.  Zielonka  also  remarked  that  several  years  ago,  it  was  anticipated  that  it  might  be 
appropriate to have different fee structures for rezoning actions in different districts. She noted 
that based on staff’s analysis of  this issue,  it was determined that  there was no  justification  in 
establishing  a  variable  fee  schedule  and  therefore  the  fees  are  the  same  regardless  of  the 
district in which the property is located. 
 
Ms.  Zielonka  further  explained  that  the  fee  for  the  Development  Unit  Plan  (DUP)  has  been 
increased from a flat $2,000 to $2,500 plus $25/acre in order to cover staff services related to 
larger  projects.  She  also  commented  that  staff  proposes  to  reduce  fees  related  to  Design 
Review applications that are submitted concurrently with a rezoning or site plan application     
 
Ms.  Zielonka  outlined  additional  recommended  fees  modifications  related  to  OnSite 
Landscaping Plans and Details; the addition of a Customer Generated Refund Request fee; the 
elimination of a reduced Unauthorized Construction fee for professionals doing work pro bono 
for nonprofit organizations; and various Code Compliance  fees  that have been moved under 
the  Development  and  Sustainability  Department  schedule  from  Neighborhood  Services, 
including modifying the time period for determining a Habitual Offender. 
 



Study Session 
April 19, 2010 
Page 4 
 
 

Mr.  Brady  advised  that  although  staff  made  a  recommendation  to  the  Audit  &  Finance 
Committee that fee changes be made with regard to fortune tellers, he suggested that  it might 
be appropriate at this time to delay action on the recommendation and that the fee remain the 
same. He stated  that  if  the Council has any  interest  in pursuing whether the City should even 
have such a fee, perhaps the Audit & Finance Committee could address the matter at a future 
time.  
 
Mayor Smith thanked staff for the presentation.  
   

4.  Hear reports on meetings and/or conferences attended. 
    

Councilmember Kavanaugh:  “Relay  for  Life”  Event;  Mesa  Municipal  Court  Building 
Grand Opening 

 
Councilmember Higgins:  Falcon  Field  Airport  Open  House;  Western  Athletic 

Conference Women’s Golf Championship Kickoff; Student 
Recognition Party at SHARP School 

 
Vice Mayor Jones:  District  4  Pancake  Breakfast;  Lighthouse  Women’s 

Resource Center Ribbon Cutting Ceremony 
 

5.  Scheduling of meetings and general information. 
 

City Manager Christopher Brady stated that the meeting schedule is as follows: 
 
Thursday, April 22, 2010, 7:30 a.m. – Study Session 
 
Thursday, April 22, 2010, 9:00 a.m. – Public Safety Committee meeting 
 

6.  Adjournment. 
 

Without objection, the Study Session adjourned at 5:29 p.m.    
 
 

________________________________ 
                  SCOTT SMITH, MAYOR 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
LINDA CROCKER, CITY CLERK 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Study Session 
April 19, 2010 
Page 5 
 
 
I  hereby  certify  that  the  foregoing minutes  are  a  true  and  correct  copy  of  the minutes  of  the Study 
Session of the City Council of Mesa, Arizona, held on the 19th day of April 2010.  I further certify that the 
meeting was duly called and held and that a quorum was present. 

                
 
 
        ___________________________________ 
              LINDA CROCKER, CITY CLERK 

 
pag 
(attachments – 3) 


